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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the
charitable company for the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023. The annual ‘repoit serves the purposes
of both a Trustees' report, and a Durectors report under company law.

Northern Star Academles Trust (NSAT) was formed on 1 April 2015 and operates 7 primary and 2 secondary.
academies across North and West Yorkshire. Its academies have a combined pupil capacity of 4,100 and as at’
the school census of October 2023 NSAT's academies have a combined number on roll of 3,950 mcludrng
nursery puplls :

Although each academy in the Trust has delegated responsibility for setting and implementing its own

admissions policy, the Trust uses local authority admrssrons services (North Yorkshlre and Bradford) for
admrmstenng all admissions and appeals

Struct_ure, Governance and Management

Constitution

NSAT is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable companys memorandum and
articles of association. are the primary governing documents of the academy: trust. The Trustees of Northern -
. Star Academies Trust are also the Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. The,
ch‘aritable company operates as Northern Star Academies Trust and is also known as NSAT.

Details of the Trustees who served dunng the year and to the date these accounts are approved are included in

- the Reference and Admrnrstratlve Details on page 1.

Members' Iiability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or . within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member. - - , , ’

Trustees’ indemnities

. NSAT is a member of the Risk. Protection Arrangement, provided by the Education & Skills'Funding Agency,"
which protects Trustees from.claims arising against negligent acts, errors,- or. omissions occurrlng whilst on
Trust busmess Further detarls are provrded in note 13. . .
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Structure, Governance and Management (continued)

Method of recruitment and ‘appointment or election of Trustees

The number of Trustees of the company shall not be less than 3 but (unless determined by ordinary resolution)
shall not be subject to a maximum. The Trust's articles of association set out the categones of Trustees as
follows:

3 Up to seven Trustees appomted by ordinary resolution of Members

e A minimum of two elected or appointed Parent Trustees, if provision is not made for at least two parent local
governors on each established local governing body
The Chief Executive Officer (CEOQ), if they so choose to act

e Any number of co-opted Trustees '

The number of Trustees who ere ernployees of the corn'pany (including the CEO) shall not exceed one third of
the total number of Trustees. The Secretary of State retains the power to appoint additional Trustees.

Trustees are appointed as and when vacancies occur, and/or when specific skill requirements are identified.
" Trustees are recruited via a range of routes, including the use of established sector-wide recruitment.
programmes such as those led by Governors for Schools and Inspiring Governance. Trustees complete an
annual skills audit to ensure a diversity of expertise on the board..

The term of _of_fice for any Trustee shall be four-years, save that this time limit shall not apply to any post which is
ex-officio. The term of office may be shorter than four years for any Trustee (except Parent Trustees) if the
Members (or in the case of a co-opted Trustee, the Trustees) determine this at the time of appointment. Subject
to remaining eligible to be a particular type of Trustee, any Trustee may be reappointed or re-elected.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees . ‘

The training and induction provided for new Trustees depends on their existing experience. Where necessary
induction and training is provided on charity, educational, legal and financial matters. All Trustees are provided
with the opportunity to visit the Trust's academies and to meet with staff and pupils. All Trustees are provided
with copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents that they will need
to undertake their role as Trustees. As there are normally only one or two Trustees a year, induction tends to be
done informally and is tailored specrflcally to the individual. :

As part of their mductron all Trustees are provided with a welcome pack, the NSAT Strategy 2020-2025, NSAT
Scheme of Delegation and the policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents
that they will need to undertake their role as a Trustee. Furthermore, new Trustees (and local governors) are
required to complete formal safeguarding training as part of their induction.

Training for NSAT's Trustees (and local governors) is reviewed each year and informed'by the outcomes of . -

skills audit, self-evaluation and internal scrutiny activity. It is provided in a variety of formats, including bespoke
in-house sessions that run throughout the year, termly forums (e.g. for chairs, and for safeguarding and SEND),
and the circulation of external training/network’ opportunmes Throughout 2022-2023 a Trust-wide governance
brleflng was also-circulated on a half-term ly basrs
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023
Structure, Governance and Management (continued)

Organisational Structure

During the year the academy trust continued to operate a unified management structure, the aim of which is to
devolve responsibility and encourage involvement in decision making at all levels, whilst maintaining clear
-separation between governance layers and increasing the visibility of key stakeholder voices -(specifically
students and staff).

The organisational structure for the reporting period is provided below:

; Board of Trustees Members
Director of ' . Trust Leader/ NSAT
Governance Executive

Governance Forums:
Chairs, Clerks, Next Generation Board NSAT Central
Safeguarding & SEND

Headteacher School
Improvement Board

L Green Futures Board

— [ — 1 |
Audit and Finance Education and ' People and Search Local G . B‘ di
Committee Standards Committee Committee ocal Governing Bodies

Executive
Headteacher/ Heads o
) Academy

Accountability for decision-making is determined by the Trust's Scheme of Delegation, which also sets out items
reserved for the Board. '

o The Board of Trustees is responsible for setting the Trust's strategy, adopting the annual budget and plan,
monitoring Trust performance by use of outcomes, delegated mandates and budgets, and making major
decisions about the direction and growth of the Trust, capital expenditure and senior staff appointments.

-+ The NSAT Executive implements the strategy and policies agreed by the Board of Trustees.

o. NSAT Central provides a range of services across the Trust's academies in order to support school Senior
Leadership Teams in their work.
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Structure, Governance and Management (oontinued)
Each of NSAT's academies has a:

e Local Governing Body (LGB), responsible for the monitoring of academy performance and local decision
making as set out within the Trust's Scheme of Delegation. LGBs reported to the Board of Trustees and
NSAT Executive throughout 2022-2023 via LGB actlon plans; the Chaurs Forum and NSAT Roundtable
meetlngs :

e Senior Leadership Team (SLT), including the Headteacher, responsible for the day-to-day running of the . .
Trust's academies, and accountable to the NSAT Executive and LGBs. SLTs are responsible for’
implementing Trust plans in their particular academy and are tasked with delivering the best possible
outcomes for students within the agreed budget Business Managers support SLTs across the Trust in thrs
work - '

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

" The setting of pay and remuneration for all staff, including key management personnel, operates. within the -
framework of the Trust's Scheme of Delegation and Pay Policy. NSAT's ‘Pay Policy is based on the nationally
agreed pay-and conditions as outlined in the School Teachers Pay and Conditions Document and 'Burgundy

Book', and the National Joint Council for local government services 'Green Book'. :

No Trustee receives pay and remuneration for their role as Trustee, with the exception of the CEO who is an
employee of the Trust. The CEO's pay and remuneration is set based on the size, responsibility and nature of
the ‘role and the role holder's performance, and is reviewed annually by Trustees supported by professional
‘external assessment and assurance.

The pay and remuneration of the members of the NSAT Executive (other than the CEO) is reviewed by the
Trustees, with the involvement of the CEO. The People and Search Committee, a sub-committee of the Board,
has within its remit the delegated authority to review and approve the NSAT Pay. Polrcy, appralsal processes
and remuneratlon of the NSAT Executive. '

~The pay and remuneration of each academy headteacher is set and reviewed annually by the NSAT Executive,
with the involvement of the Chair of Governors of the respective LGB. Decisions are based on role size and role
holder's performance, and are reviewed and approved by the People and Search Committee of Trustees. .

NSAT follows' the pay arrangements for malntarned schools in England and Wales for teachers and associate
staff . :

NSAT follows the pay arrangements for maintained -schools in England and Wales for teachers and associate
staff.
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Structure, Governance and Management (continued)

Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials durlng the year 6
Full-time equivalent employee number . . . 6

Percentage of time spent on,fa_cnllty time

- Percentage of time - - o o " Number of
. ) ’ employees
0% S : B - 6
1%-50% . - = - - , — - S -
51%-99% - o : : A -
100% - o - : : .
<Percentage ef pay bill spent on facility tirrte : IR . B £000
Total cost of facility time o S ' 482
Total pay bill ‘ - : 18,386,172
Percentage of total pay bl" spent on facmtytlme E _ . - %

Paid trade Union activities

‘Time spent on pa|d trade unlon actmtles as a percentage of total pald facmty time - %
. hours : . o

Trade union facility time

The Trust has complied: with the reqmrements -of the Trade Union (Facmty Time Pubhcatlon Requirements)-
Regulatlons 2017 which took effect from 1 April 2017.
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

. Structure, Governance and Management (continued)

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

" The Trust became a lmulti-acade’my trust on 1 April 2015, following strong collaboration between Skipton Girls'
High School Academy Trust and Harrogate High School Academy Trust. Both academies are foundmg
members of Northern Star Academies Trust. The Trust currently has nine member academles

" During the reporting year, the Trust applled an annual central charge to member academies for central and
support services.

~ The Trust operates a School Centred Initial Teacher Training (SCITT) partnership (Northern Lights SCITT)
providing school-based- teacher training. The SCITT operates within agreed policy and terms set out in the
relevant Iegal and operational documentatron . :

The NSAT Foundation operates internally to the Trust, and delivers school to school SRMA support and leads
the Science Learning Partnership (SLP) for North 'an_d West Yorkshire as part of STEM Learning.

For Post 16 'provision there is some shared provisien for minerity subjects across local schools. A number of
students from the Trust attend courses at Ermysted's Grammar School, and the Trust hosts a number of
students from Ermysted's Grammar School under normal business arrangements

The Nldderdale Area of Outstandlng Natural Beauty (AONB) is a formal partner for the trust's Farm Twmnrng .
project (funded through the Farming in Protected Landscapes scheme), and the Royal Horticultural Society
(RHS) Harlow Carr has provided advice and guidance to the trust and its academies, as well as venues for
Green Futures and Board meetings, as part of NSAT's Environmental Sustainability Strategy.

Harrogate High School is contracted as a SchooIA Games Organiser, for the Harrogate SchooI'Spo_rts-
Partnership; funded by Ecorys. Harrogate High School also provides lettings management support to Harrogate
Hockey Club, and the club provrdes access to Hockey Club facilities for Harrogate High students during the
“school day.

At New Park Primary ‘Academy. a community interest company Resurrected Bites delivers the 'New Park
Community Grocery for people in food poverty. .

The Trust has an SLA in place with the Boroughbridge High School and King James’s School Federated
Governing Body to provide governance support and advisory services; and the Director of Governance and
Compliance has delivered external reviews of governance via the National Governance Association. The
Directors of School Improvement have delrvered improvement consultancy work via B11 Educatlon

Further details are included in note 32 to the Fmancral Statements.
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

- Structure, Governance and Management (continued)

Engagement with employees (inéluding disabled persons)

The Trust and academy SLTs provide regular updates to staff on Trust news, performance and successes in
order to enable a common awareness of activities and achievements taking place. This is conducted using a
combination of written, electronic and face to face communications. Throughout the reportlng period, anngsnde
school-based communications this has included: .

Letters direct from the CEO to trust staff

Weekly CEO briefings to Headteachers, including information to be cascaded to all staff
Regular Headteacher keep in touch meetings with the NSAT Executive

Update meetings with SLTs and Business Managers .

Staff CPD workshops and forums (heid onllne and in person)

Somal media and webS|te updates

. The Trustees understand the imperative to ensure that staff voice is considered and reflected within their ©
strategic decision- ‘making: to support this,.a range -of activities have been undertaken during 2022-2023 to
share and capture staff voice agamst pnonty areas. These are summarised in the table below.
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Structure, Governance and Management (continued)

Staff Conference

Each year a Trust-wide staff conference ensures all employees have the
opportunity to engage and participate in Trust development. Feedback from
participants is reported to Trustees.

Termly Pulse Surveys/
reviews of central
services

Termly online surveys are completed trust-wide, tailored to trustee priorities and
reported to the full board. During 2022-2023, these have covered areas such as
staff cultures, the trust's environmental sustainability priorities, 1T skills needs,
access to and engagement with CPD opportunities, requested content for the
development of a new staff intranet, inclusion/diversity, and a review of inclusion
and compliance support services provided centrally.

Staff Wellbeing

The Staff Wellbeing Ambassadors continued to meet across the Trust during 2022-

Ambassadors - . 23. This included presentations at the annual staff conference and development
. work towards a trust-wide Welibeing Charter.
NSAT Roundtables The Roundtable series provides an opportunity for the NSAT Executive, academy SLT

members and LGB members to review progress and priorities for each academy. This
informs strategic and curriculum development business planning, governance
monitoring and budget setting processes.

Presentaﬁons to Board
and LGBs, and link
governance

A range of Trust staff — including academy SLT members — are invited to report to
the Board on a regular basis. Every Board meeting is opened by an academy
headteacher and pupils. It is also an expectation that local governors will receive
presentations from a range of school staff at each LGB meeting. Trustees and
governors are expected to engage with staff during their visits to settings.

Academy-specific staff

voice activities

To explore context-specific themes, the Board of Trustees and NSAT
Executive commission staff voice activities that are tailored to reflect a
particular setting. During 2022-23, staff voice activities took place in primary
and secondary settings, with in-depth staff feedback supporting the alignment
of strategic, governance and curriculum priorities.

Green Futures Board

A group of staff from across the Trust, brought together to explore, discuss and drive
forward Environmental Sustainability projects in each academy.

Staff Networks and
peer to peer
“collaborative
relationships

The following staff networks have been embedded across the Trust: Headteacher
School Improvement, EYFS, DSL, DHT/AHT, SENDCo, Maths, English and
Science. Furthermore, headteachers engage with peer-to-peer collaborative
reviews to support curriculum design and development.

The Board of Trustees recognises that equal opportunities is an integral part of good practice within the
workplace and aims to establish equal opportunities in all areas of its activities including creating a workplace
environment in which the contribution and needs of all people are fully valued. During the reporting period, the
Board reviewed its Equality Objectives.

The policy of the Trust is to support the recruitment and retention of pupils and employees with disabilities. The
trust does this by making resources available, through training and career development, and adapting the
physical environment where practicable and reasonable (e. g lifts, ramps disabled toilets and adequate door
widths to enable wheelchair access).

In the reporting period, Trustees have received regular reports from the Directors of Inclusion and Wellbeing.
This has included the offer of SEND (Special Educational Needs and Disability) Reviews for academy settings,
extensive liaison with external agencies and other stakeholders as required, CPD sessions for staff, and
bespoke support for individual cases in each academy to ensure quality, inclusive practice.
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Structure, Governance and Management (continued)

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the academy trust

The Trust has a direct and close working relationship with its primary 'customers’ — namely our pupils, their '
parents and carers, and local communities. This relationship forms the cornerstone to the NSAT Promise,
Strategy and objectives.

Pupils are directly engaged with the Board of Trustees: via the Trust's governance structure. Focusing on the
Environmental Sustainability Strategy, the reporting period saw the continuation of the Trust's Next Generation
Board. Comprised of pupils and students representing each academy, this group (including a trustee) met on a
half-termly basis throughout 2022-2023 to share updates with each other on their progress. Furthermore, the
first item of each meeting of the trustees is led by members of the Next Generation Board so that pup|I and
students are at the heart of Trustee discussion and decision-making. A

Engagement with parents and carers is fundamental. During the reporting period this has been achieved
through a wide range of activities such as: regular letters and updates both from the Trust and each academy
headteacher, and in-depth outreach work with families across all Trust communities. Several academy settings
across the Trust have well-established family/community hubs and parent forums, providing a wide range of
opportunities for communlcatlon and engagement

The trust _has a strong relationship with its 'suppllers, building sustainable working relationships that deliver best
value for its pupils. The Trust has clear policy guidelines on procurement, contracts and seeking best value
underpinning its supplier relationships. The Trust also recognises the importance of seeking positive business
and community relationships centred around its academies. This activity generates contributions, both financial
and participative, that support goals and objectives and provide tangible benefit to pupils and staff.
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Objectives and activities
Objects and aims

In accordance with its articles of association, NSAT's principal object and activity is to advance, for the public
benefit, education in the United Kingdom by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing
schools and offering a broad and balanced curriculum in line with the requirements of the master funding
agreement in place with the Education and Skills Funding Agency. The Trust also has an additional charitable
object to provide recreational facilities for the benefit of the local community where available

The main aims of the academy trust dunng the year ended 31 August 2023 are encompassed by the NSAT
Promise.

NSATIBromise

QurValues

Nurture

Empathy, care for others
and self-kindness

gand steadylea eishu and to i

TR o,
. , Green, resilience,

: leadership, steadfastness
and trust
/ \'f/\{gpromlse that we wull prowde st' atin gy s Aspire
4 Iearmné fhvironments and pedagogles using e Imaginative and innovative
,s‘ eff?ctlve digital technologies and EdTeCh avallablfmhat“’*g thinking, inclusive and

REAT) .
/ alI children can reach their aspirations. diverse and entrepreneur-
e .
0. Sh|p

b’iomise to all our learing communities - children, Thrive

ents staff and the wider community - that we will do all Courage, confidence,
) we can to ensure that they thrive in a supportive Trust which curiosity, collaboration and
is ct?mmlltvted to IoQ_klng after the wellness of everyone. partnership

vEaRa.
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Objectives and activities (continued)

Objectives, strategies and activities

The objectives in place to achieve the NSAT Promise are set out within the NSAT Strategy.2020-2025. These
are provided below.

NURTURE: People make the difference. We are a learning organisation supporting :

~and connecting learning, teaching, leadership and governance.

To be deeply committed to providing inclusion and diversity in education, playing a leading role in

1
practice and advocacy.

2 To enable NSAT's people to thrive as a dynamic and engaged team of professionals and ensure our A
workforce more closely reflect the diversity of the communities NSAT schools serve.

3 To support all staff to play a part in building a more inclusive and diverse culture where they benefit
from high quality professional development designed uniquely to support career progression and
role satisfaction.

4 “To maximise partnerships and networks across and beyond the Trust to advance knowledge and
skill sharing, contribute to national and international dialogue about education and further increase
grant funded projects. Develop a Hub of exchange with peer institutions. o

5 To grow the next generation of teachers by promoting Northern Lights SCITT as aTeacher-Training

‘centre of excellence’

SUSTAIN:WelareOnell’earningiGCommunitythatieducatestchildrentandjyoundg)
peoplelinfanlinclusiverandisustainablelschoollimprovemenymodeliwhichltransforms
theiflifelchancesy

1 To provide children and young people with the highest standards of academic excellence from EYFS
toPost 16. o :

2 To deliver an innovative, green, comprehensive and progressive curriculum model ih each school
that develops robust learning skills, habits and competencies.

3 To review what we teach and how we teach so that we close perceived inequalities and social frag-
mentation in our curriculum provision.

4 To maintain regular and healthy engagement, communication and strong relationships with parents/

carers and local communities and ensure that stakeholders feedback inform our positive develop-
ment ' i
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Objectives and activities (continued)

ASPIRE:earninglintinspiring|PlacesyWeledUcatelandligoklatiedNSATLGhildrealintd
SafelandisecrefgreentandltstainableYpersonalisedieaiginglenviropments

1 | Toreduce our carbon consumption considerably and lead education sectorial thinking about how
| besttoeducatein a sustainable and green way.

2 To make the use of educatlon technology part of alI that we do and close the dlgltal divide between
 all groups of learners. Reliable and flexible information technology solutions will be in place.

3 Touse digital thinking and solutions across the Trust partnership to provide a contemporary HR Infra-
structure and provide the support that staff need to do their jobs effectively.

4 Todevelop the physical, digital, technical and environmental infrastructure to preserve NSAT school
bualdlngs develop estates and expand accessand mclusnon across all estates.

5 . Tooptimise space across all NSAT estates to support real- world Iearmng,cumculum provision, care,
guidance and support.

1 Toincrease Trust membership in a considered and strategic way, ensuring new Academies share our
ambitions and are closely aligned to the NSAT vision, mission and values.

2 To promote a whole organisational approach to wellness and positive mental health in a safe, happy
and healthy workplace '

3 Tobe a steadfast, responsible’ and compliant organisation with appropriate systems, policies and
procedures.

4 : Todevelop a business model with diversified income streams that allows us to be bold and innova- -

tive with the education we offer and how we serveour larger communities.

The activities undertaken to achieve the Trust's charitable objectives are intended to provide the highest quality
of education in the public sector for students aged between 2 and 18. A brief summary of workstreams for 2022
to 2023 are set out below, with each of these achieved by the end of the reporting period.
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Objectives and activities (continued)

Strands of Summary of 2022-2023 work towards achieving objectives
Strategy
Nurture - | Review of all NSAT HR policies and people strategy, including absence

management and development of trust-wide intranet for engagement and
establishing a JCC ‘ '
Development of trust-wide Wellbeing Charter

Launch revised school improvement framework

Expand and strengthen networks and collaborations across the trust

Sustain Continue to strengthen provision for inclusion and SEND, including

' : developing relationships with external agencies and reviewing models of
appropriate provision

Strategic safeguarding — implementation of trust-wide safeguarding strategy
and quality assurance programme

Embed high quality and responsive data and compliance services across
the trust '

Aspire Implement actions across the trust to address the disadvantaged gap

: Improve the strategic approach taken by leaders to maximise the effective
use of digital technologies for learning

Further the trust’s work leading environmental sustainability, including
launch of the Farm Twinning programme

Thrive | Embed the successful conversion of Willow Tree Community Primary
School : .

‘Embed trust’s risk management framework, policy and practice
Implement stakeholder engagement framework

Determine new ITE provider for Northern Lights SCITT

To enable the Board of Trustees to monitor and challenge progress against strategic priorities and objectives,
the NSAT Executive implements a 100-Day delivery and reporting cycle for Business Planning. This reporting
cycle tracks the detailed actions, targets and key performance indicators for each strand of the five-year NSAT
Strategy. During each 100 Day cycle, Trustees receive an update from the Chief Executive Office against the
set objectives — with interim tracking of deliverables managed within project management software to enable
real time reporting to trustees at each meeting. .

In addition-to the trust-wide objectivés, each academy has-an Academy Development Plan (ADP) aligned with
the overall strategic priorities of the trust, and against which progress is reviewed by LGBs.
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Objectives and activities (continued)

Public benefit

The academy trust’'s aims and achievements are set out within this report and have been undertaken to further
its charitable purposes for the public benefit. The Trustees have complied with the duty under Section 4 of the
Charities Act 2011 to have due regard to public benefit guidance published by the Charity Commission for
England and Wales and the Trustees have considered this guidance in deciding what activities the academy
trust should.undertake. . :

The Trust works collaboratively with a range of other schools and Trusts for the benefit of their students.

Additionally, the Trust offers recreational facilities to its local commumtles and works closely with community
groups »
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST .
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Objectives and activities (continued)

Strategic report

Achievements and performance

Through the NSAT Strategy the Board of Trustees encourages academlc asplratlon but also nurtures empathy,
care and kindness. :

A Level Successes

Proportion A*/As ' - |38%
Proportion A*/Bs - L 68%
Proportion A*/Cs _ 99% -
Pass rate ’ 99% -
Proportion securing a place at university 94%
Proportion securing an apprenticeship 1% -
Proportion securing a place at a Russeli Group - 141%
university : . B

GCSE Successes _ .
Harrogate High  Skipton Girls'
School School

Average Attainment 8 3478 68.40

Average grade - "~ 13.48 _ 7.00

% 9-5 English and Maths - : 24% - © 0 189%

% 9-4 English and Maths ' 38% - ‘ 98%

Proportion of students achieving the EBacc |14% : - 181% -

Students remaining in education or entering 98% - 100%

employment after KS4 :

Finance KPIs : .
‘ . . : 2023 2022
Total income per pupil . o - £6,423 -£5,535
Total GAG per pupil . : _— - £4663 = £4,359
GAG /.Income ratio . : : - 73% . 79%
Total staff costs / total income: (less caputal and SCITT income) - 82% 83%
Expenditure per pupil : . £6,648 - £559
Pupil Teacher ratio A o 22.52 19.75
Total revenue reserves / income ratio ' o 3% %
Total revenue reserves / GAG ratio . . 4% 9%

Going concern.

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust
has adequate resources to continue in operatronal existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
-adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Promoting the success of the company

The NSAT Board of Trustees recognises the importance of acting in accordance with its key duty of promoting
the success of the company to achieve its charitable objects, and being mindful of the longer-term
consequences of its decision-making. This is reflected in the Trust's vision and values (NSAT Promise) and |ts
objectives and aims (NSAT Strategy), and is demonstrable within:

 the trust’'s approaches to celebrating and nurturing community diversity and.inclusion at local level across all
of its academies

e acommitment by the Board to internal growth, staff development and wellbelng

e Trust-wide policies and strategies focused on Wellbeing, Inclusion and SEND, Safeguarding; Estates
Management and digital infrastructure -

The impact of the Trust on the wider community and the environment is at the heart of the Board's decision-

making, with the former reflected within the charitable objects of the Trust and the latter a core priority

. —including via the NSAT Environmental Sustainability Strategy, which in 2022-2023 was relaunched to include
a series of ‘non-negotiables’ for all trust schools to achieve. ,

For examples of activities to promote the success of the company during 2022-23, including engaging with
employees, suppliers, customers and the wider community, see page 10. Furthermore, the Trust has informed
system leadership across the sector through a variety of invited speaking engagements, the sharing of case
studies and exemplars of its work through forums such as Forum Strategy, the Confederatlon of School Trusts
Trust Governance Professionals, The Key for Senior Leaders.

The Trust actively works with commumty stakeholders and partners, local governing bodies and employees to
reinforce its aims and ethos, so as to maintain a reputation for high standards and has supportmg Codes of
Conduct in place for Trustees governors and employees. v

- The value of strong collegiate relationships was demonstrated during the reporting year as trustees continued to
support the establishment of peer-to-peer collaborations. For details of employee engagement strategies,
including Trust-wide collaborative connections and networks see page 9.

Financial review

Most of the academy trust's income is obtained from the Department for Education (DfE) via the Education and
Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular
purposes. The grants received from the DfE/ESFA during the year ended 31 August 2023 and the associated
expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

The academy trust also received grants for fixed assets from the DfE/ESFA. In accordance with the Charities
Statement of Recommended practice, ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities’ (SORP 2015), such grants are
shown under the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income in the fixed asset fund. The restricted
fixed asset fund balance is reduced by annuai depreciation charges over the expected useful life of the assets
concerned. -

During the year ended 31 August 2023, total expenditure of £26,056,000 was exceeded by recurrent grant
funding from DfE/ESFA together with other incoming resources. The excess of expenditure over income for the -
year (excluding pension reserve movements and restricted fixed asset funds) was £684,000.

All of the expenditure shown in the Statement of Financial Activities is in furtherance of the academy trust's
objectives. '
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

- Strategic report (continued)

. At 31 August 2023 net book value of fixed assets was £37,408,000 and movements in tangible fixed assets are
shown in note ‘15 to the Financial Statements. The assets were used exclusuvely for providing education and the
associated support services to the students of the academy trust.

The provisions of Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 102 have been applled in fuII in respect of LGPS pensuon
scheme, resulting in a deficit of £2,086,000 recognised on the Balance Sheet. .

The academy trust held fund balances as at 31 August 2023 of £36,486,000 comprising £113,000 of restricted
general funds, £37,830,000 of restricted fi xed asset funds, a pension defi C|t of £2,086,000 and £629,000 of
unrestricted funds.

Reserves policy

The level of reserves is reviewed by Trustees regularly throughout the year. The minimum level of reserves for
the ongoing needs of the academy trust is reviewed by .the Trustees on an annual basis. This review
encompasses the nature of income. and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and
" the nature of reserves. The Trusteés have agreed a target reserve of 3% of General Annual Grant "GAG”
funding with a temporary tolerance of 3% of GAG funding. The temporary tolerance is limited to two years (with
a target of. returning to 5% by 2025-2026. The Trustees therefore consider it is prudent to hold reserves of
£548,000 excluding fixed asset and pension reserves." : . . :

The current measurement for reserves has been agreed on a two-stage process 1) a rlsk assessed model to
identify a target range and-2) a benchmarkmg comparison test. ‘ . .

As at 31 August 2023 the academy trust holds avarlable reserves of £742,000, comprising of restncted general
~ funds (excludmg pensron reserves) of £113,000 and unrestrlcted funds of £629,000.

This is considered sufficient to cover the trust's stated aims and objectwes. -
Investment policy

The Trustees have approved plans to invest only in low risk bank deposit accounts, aligned to the Trust's
reserves policy, with the flexibility to invest across a range of account terms in order to balance liquidity and
return.
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Principal risks and uncertainties

The board reviews its risk register on a regular basis throughout the year, and its risk appetite statement
annually. Risk registers at Trust and academy level seek to identify the key risks that the Trust is or could be
exposed to, identifies the likelihood of a risk occurring, the potential impact and actions that are being
addressed to mitigate each risk. .

The Trustees have assessed the major risks, to which the academy trust is exposed, including those relating
specifically to teaching provision of facilities and other operational areas of the trust, its individual academies,
and its finances. The risk categories considered are varied and reflect the risk appetite set by the Board and are
as follows: financial resilience and sustainability, governance, growth and transformation, health and safety, IT
infrastructure, quality of education, resilience, safeguarding, staffing capacity and capability. Principal risks and
uncertainties are centered on changes in the level of funding from DfE/ESFA. In addition, the’academy trust is a
member of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), which results in the recognition of a significant
deficit on the academy trust Balance Sheet. Where significant financial risk remains trustees have ensured they -
have adequate insurance cover. The académy trust has an effective system of mternal financial controls and .
this is explalned in more detail in the Governance Statement. : .

The Trust manages its finances to ensure a level of reserves adequate to cover unforeseen circumstances and
to make planned use as a.part of the medium-term financial plan. The Trust's principle income stream is funded
directly by the Department for Education which is considered to be relatively secure, subject to the management
of pupil numbers. However, Trustees acknowledge the continued impact of government policy on overall and
“per pupil funding levels and public sector pay awards. Trustees recognise that the combined impact of
" continued funding pressure, public sector spending challenges, rising energy costs and staff cost inflationary
factors represent a material risk to manage within the Trust and the wider education sector.

The academy trust has fully implemented the requirements of the Safer Recruitment procedures and all reIevant A
staff have received training in this area in addition to training on Safeguarding and Child Protection.

The academy trust is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties in common with other academies. The
academy trust has in place procedures to identify and mitigate financial risks. :

AFundraising

Skipton Girls' High School operate a donation scheme for student laptops and parent donations for additional-
learning resources for some high resource subjects. '

in addition, Skipton Girls', New Park, Hookstone Chase, Holycroft, Starbeck, Eastwood, Greatwood and Willow
Tree all operate PTAs to fundraise for their school by arranging social events throughout the year.

Donations are consolidate'd within school budget monitoring and are overseen by SLT and the finance team.

From time to time the Trust may receive one-off donations from community or busmess partners to support
individual schools. 4
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST .
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

The Board’'s ambition is to reduce the Trust's environmental impact in everything that it does. Alongside work to
build learning about sustainability into the curriculum, Trustees aim to make daily activities greener as an
orgamsatlon The Board understands that it has much to do to achieve this goal :

Specn" ically, the Trust is worklng towards a series of green ‘non- negotlables as follows

Targets to increase re-use and recycllng and to reduce Iandflll waste

. Removing single use plastics from our schools :
Improving energy efficiency

. Creatrng more ‘green learning spaces across our school estates, for educatlon recreation and growmg
food : :

) Maklng it easier to walk or cycle to school

The Trust has sw1tt:hed its electr|c1ty supply to tariffs which support energy' production from renewable sources,
and re-structured its school catering services around a common charter WhICh places sustamable and ethical
food productlon at.its core. : . . .

The Trust's greenhouse gas emissions-and energy consumption are as follows:

2023 2022

Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) - L ... 4388225 4,206,334
. Energy consumption breakdown (kWh): 4 ' o L -
Gas : ) ’ - 3,105,910 2,756,335
Scope 1 emissions (m tonnes of COo2 equtvalent) o N ' . o
Gas consumption : . ' S "~ 567.01 " 503.14
Owned transport, L L o : 061 ¢ '-‘ )
- ” Total scope 1 _ - R o . 56762 = 503.14
Scope.2 émissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent): . _ ,
Purchased electricity : . S ' S o 260.92 27207
Scope 3 emissions (in tonnes of €02 equivalent): ‘ _ o
Busnness travel in employee owned or rental vehlcles R B L 401 o 9.74,
.Total gross emissions (in tonnes of C02 equnvalent) o 832.55 -_ .- 78495
Intensity ratio: . o « : : , o - .
Tonnes of CO2 equivalent per pupil =~ v ' : 028 - 021

Quantification anchéporti'ng Methodologdy:-

- o We have followed the 2019 -HM G'overnment Environmental Reporting Guidelines We have also used thé
GHG Reporting Pretocol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2022 UK Government's Conversion,
Factors for Company Reportlng

Intensnv'measurement. '

The. chosen. intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per pupll the
recommended ratio for the sector.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 -

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting (continued) .

Measures taken to imgrove enerqy efficiency

We have installed smart meters across all sites and increased video conferencung technology for staff meetings,
to reduce the

-Plans for future vperiods

NSAT continues to collaborate with schools within the communities it serves and develop member academies,
. in"order to improve education for children and young people from a range of backgrounds. We aim to provide
the highest educational opportunities for our pupils as well as providing professional development for all
-teaching and support staff, so that our academies support pupils in achlevmg posmve outcomes and we
contrlbute to the raising of educatlonal standards across the community. . '

The Trust will continue to work with partners in education, ‘industry and the th|rd sector to develop innovative
and challengmg practlces to achleve its aims and build on current successes. :

The board reviewed the five- year (2020 2025) strategy during the reporting perlod to ensure that th|s remalned ‘
appropriate; overall, this exercise confirmed that overall the strategy was on track and fit for purpose.. A slightly
amended version will be relaunched in September 2023. o
With. a number of new appomtments to the board throughout the reporting period, an immediate focus for the

next period will bé on development of trustees and board culture, aligned with ongoing work across the- trust in
relatlon to the people strategy, staff cultures, and successmn plannlng for the chalr role.

Funds held as custodlan on,behalf of others

Holycroft Primary School holds a small resndual balance of funds held on behalf of the local Area Partnershlp of
Schools in Keighley. ' .

:A'uditors
. Insofar as the Trustees are aware

o thereis no reIevant audlt |nformat|on of which the charltable companys audltor s unaware

e The Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant . -

© audit |nformat|on and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

_The Trustees’ Report, mcorporatlng a strateglc report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
company directors, on 15 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by .

7.

H Flynn_ :
Chair of Trustees - .
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Northern Star Academies Trust
has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. .

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfEs Governance Handbook and
competency framework for governance. -

The Board o'f Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in. accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between Northern Star Academies Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also
responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on gevernance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibnities. The full Board of Trustees has formally met 8 times during the year.

Attendance during the year at'meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee . : Meetlngs attended Out of a possible

R Allan (appointed 30 June 2023) : .0
M Chambers 6
H Flynn, Chair 7
- L Hoath (appointed 27 January 2023) 3
A Kelly (until 10 July 2023) 6
A-M Merifield (until 17 November 2022) } 0
H Murphy (appointed-27 January 2023) 6
" J Plews, CEO. and Accounting.Officer 8
N Rhodes (until 5 June 2023) 0
A Ruland (until 27 January.2023) . 1
L. Sheppey (from 27 January 2023 to 30 March 0
2023)
"J Unsworth. (appomted 30 June 2023) oo 1
N Walker 7

2N 2000

[o « KN

. Dunng the reporting perlod the Board of Trustees has appointed several new members as terms have come to
an-end, and to ensure it maintains appropriate skills and expertise. .

En_suring robus"t aceountability is. the priority of the Board's overarching governance structure and the NSAT
Scheme of Delegation is reviewed by the Board on an annual basis. The Board fully understands that the
"Trust's. governance arrangements play a. vital role! in the strategic oversight of its work providing challenge,
critical appraisal and expertise. '

The Board has. an. annual calendar of business set at the start of each academic year, which includes a
schedule of statutory returns and is updated throughout the year to ensure compliance. To remain updated on

- governance practice and statutory requirements, the Trust is a member of the Confederation of School Trusts,

and the- Director of Governance is a member of Trust Governance Professionals, the National Governance
Association, and the Chartered” Governance Institute. Trustees and local governors are encouraged to
undertake regular CPD, e.g. sector conferences, webinars and bespoke in-house training sessions delivered for
the Trust's governance community .

Reporting templates for the NSAT Executive (CEO, COO and CFO) are standardlsed enablmg consistent
reporting of progress against strategic pnorltles .
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

Northern Star Academies Trust manages conflicts of interest by requesting declarations of interest from all
Trustees and executive leaders at the beginning of the academic year. Declarations of interest are also a
standing agenda item at each governance meeting and all members are fully aware of the requirements to be

transparent and open about any possrble conflicts. » o

" Governance reviews.

Trustees are satisfied with overall governance arrangements and have |mplemented all actlons for contlnuous '
improvement following two external reviews of governance through the 2020-2021 reporting period. During
summer term 2022-23, the Trust underwent a further robust exercise with the National Governance Association
(NGA). This has led to the trust being a finalist in the NGA's Outstanding Governance in a Multi-Academy- Trust -
category for a second consecutive time. The next external review of governance wrll be commissioned to take
place either in summer term 2023- 2024 or autumn term 2024-25. .

The Board undertakes annual self—evaluatlons The 2022-23 self-evaluatlon exerC|se has . rdenﬁﬂed priority
areas of focus for 2023-24, including. further development of board cultures and dynamlcs and dlfferent means
. of stakeholder engagement to enhance visibility of all stakeholder groups :

Audit and Flnance_Commlttee :

This is a committee of the Board of Trustees. Its remit is to support the Board and the Accounting Officer in
relation to their responsibilities for risk management, internal control and financial sustainability by reviewing the
~ comprehensives of assurances in. meeting the Board's accounting needs. As part of its role, the Committee

receives reports from the internal and external auditors and oversees progress agamst any audit-related
management actions. - : : . .

Attendance at Audit and Finance meetings during the reporting period was as follows:

Trustee . : : ~ Meetings attended Out of a possible
N Walker (Chair) - o 3 4
M Chambers o o 3 4
H Flynn 2 2
H.Murphy (appointed 27 January 2023) -1 3
‘N Rhodes (until 5 June 2023) . 2 2
A Ruland (until 27 January 2023) 0 2

Page 24 '



NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)
Education and Standards Committee

The Education and Standards Committee is a committee of the main Beard of Trustees. Its remit is to support
the Board in ensuring that standards across the Trust, espemally in regards to pupils and learning. are set,
~achieved and maintained.

Attendance at Education and Standards meetings dU‘ring the reporting period-was as follows:

Trustee : Meetings attended Out of a possible
A-M Merifield (Chalr until. 17 November 2022) 1 1
"H Flynn 1 2
"L Hoath (appointed 27 January 2023) - 1 1
A Kelly (until 10 Jun 2023) S 2 2
J Plews, (Accounting Officer) ' -2 2

" People and Search Cbmmittee

The Trust People Commlttee is a committee. of the board, with a remit to prowde assurance that there are
robust systems and. processes in relation to the setting of the Trusts pay pollcy, the remuneratlon and .
succession planning of the Executive Team and senior leaders.

Th|s committee has had rolhng membership through the reporting period, with attendance as follows:

Trustee C ' . ' . Meetings attended v Out of a possible
M Chambers 1 ' 1
HFlynn . 2 3
A Kelly (until 10 June 2023) - 4" 4
A-M Merifield (until 17 November 2022) 1 1
. H Murphy (appointed 27 January 2023) - 1 1
J Plews o ' 2 2
N Rhodes (until 5 June 2023) .0 2
A Ruland (unti! 27 January 2023) 1 1
1 - 1

N Walker
Review of value for money

. As Aceountingv Officer the Chiéf Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers
- good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to- .
the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received. '

The Accounting Officer considers. how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be.improved,
including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accountlng Officer for the Trust has delivered
‘improved value for money during the year by

e Delivering S|gnlflcant capital works across the Trust estate to enhance the safety of school estates school
environment and sustainability. :

¢ Streamlining and further ecentralising trust functions,. giving oversight to impraove the opportunlty for

e resourcing decisions to achieve better value for meney

o Embedding Commor Operating. Procedures across central functions including HR, IT and flnance‘

*  Continuing to develop innovative and collaborative partnerships with a wide range of stakeholders
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The'purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and-economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Northern Star Academies Trust
for the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed, together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
academy trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. Th|s process is regularly reviewed by
the Board of Trustees. .

The risk and control fréméwork

The aéademy trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
- information and administrative procedures mcludlng the segregation of duties and a system of delegatlon and
accountability. In particular, |t includes:

o. comprehensive budgeting and monltorlng systems with an annual budget and periodic flnanC|aI reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

s regular reviews by the Audit, Risk and Finance Committe of reports which indicate financial performance
against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes -

o setting targets to measure financial and other performance .

+. clearly defined purchasing guidelines

e delegation of authority and segregation of dutles and responsmllmes

. |dent|ﬁcat|on and management of l’ISkS

" The Board of Trustees has decided to buy—m an mtemal audit service from RSM to ensure independence, rigour
and objectlwty within the internal scrutmy process. . :

Four internal reviews were completed by RSM during the reportmg period. These centred on: Follow Up on
2022 internal audit management actions, Key Financial Controls (Purchasmg and Credltors) Payroll, and
Setting Executive Pay. -

The internal auditor’s role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
academy trust’s financial and other systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included:.

- testing of payroll systems
o testing of purchase systems
* testing of control account/ bank reconciliations

As reviews are completed, the internal auditor reports to the Board of Trustees, including through the Audit,
Risk and Finance Committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of
Trustees’ financial responsibilities. Following each review, it prepares a detailed report to Trustees outlining the
areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the Board consider actions and assess
progress. The completion of any necessary management. actions resulting from the above reviews are then
tracked by Trustees via NSAT Executive reporting to the Audit and Finance Committee. On an annual basis the
auditor prepares an annual summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings,
recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess year on year progress.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The risk and control framework (continued)

The internal auditor has delivered the schedule of work as planned, with no material control issues arising as a
result of this work . . _

Separate reviews are completed in relation to health and safety across the trust's estates and GDPR/data
compliance. .

.Review of effectiveness

As Accountlng Officer, the Chief Executlve Officer has responsnblllty for reviewing the effectlveness of the
system of internal control. Durmg the year in question the review has been mformed by

the work of the mternal auditor

the work of the external auditor. : :

the guidance of the Audit, Risk and Finance committee

"the school resource management self-assessment tool
. the work of the executive leaders within the academy trust who have respon3|b|I|ty for the development and
. maintenance of the |nternal control framework . :

e o o 0o o

The Accounting Ofﬂcer has been advised of the |mpI|cat|ons of the result of their review of their review of the '
system of mternal control by the auditors and a plan to ensure continuous |mprovement of the system is in
place. .

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 15 December 2023 and signed on thelr behalf

H Flynn ‘ o . - . J Plews :
Chair of Trustees o ' Accounting Off:cer
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STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of Northern Star Academies Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the
‘academy trust board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and-conditions of all funding, including for estates safety and
management, under the funding agreement between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for
Education. ‘As part-of my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust
Handbook 2022, mcludlng responsibilities for estates safety and management

1 confirm that | and the. Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material |rregular or |mproper use of all -
funds by the Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and condltlons of funding under the Trust's
funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2022. .

[ confirm that no instances of materlal m’egulanty |mpropr|ety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are ldentlfled after the date of thlS statement, these will be notlf ed to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA ’ .

WM

JPlews '
Accounting Officer
Date: 15 December 2023
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT -OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
" responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies

Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting.

Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law,

. the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming résources and application of resources,

.including its income and expenditure, for that period: In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- observe the methods and pnnmples of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2022 to 2023; :
- make judgements and accountmg estimates that are reasonable and prudent; »
- —  state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject - to any material
’ departures discloseéd and explained in the fmancaal statements; : '
— prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless |t is mappropnate to presume that the
charltable company will continue in business. : :

The Trustees are r_espon3|ble for keeplng adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position -
of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the preventton and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring 'that in its ‘conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which.conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responS|bIe for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been-applied for the:
purposes-intended. .

" The Trustees are responéible for the maintenance and integrity of the cbrporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
' di‘ssemination- of financial statements may differ from Iegislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 15 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Chalr of Trustees
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Northern Star Academies Trust (the ‘'trust’) for the year ended 31
August 2023 which comprise the Statément of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash
Flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework-that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the
Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

|n our opmlon financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the, Trust's affairs as ‘at 31 August 2023 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;
= have been properly prepared in .accordance with United Klngdom Generally Accepted Accountlng_
Practice; and
o= have been- prepared in accordance with the reqwrements of the Companies Act 2006, the Chantles
' - SORP 2019 and the Academles Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 |ssued by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency : . : :

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical-
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the
Financial Reporting ‘Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethicai responsibilities in .
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit ewdence we have obtained is sufficient and

approprlate to provide a basis for our OmeOI'l :

Con,clusions.r’elating to going concern

In auditing the fmanmal statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the gomg concern basis of
~accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as a going
" concern for a penod of at least twelve months from when the ﬂnanaal statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the respon5|b|||t|es of the Trustees with respect to going concern are descrlbed in the
relevant sections of thls report. .
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST (CONTINUED)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report other than the financial
statements and our Auditors' Report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained
within the Annual Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course
of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude

that there is a material misstatement-of this other information, we are required to report that fact. ' -

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion.on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our oplnlon based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Trustees' Report |nc|ud|ng the Strategic Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

- the Trustees' Report and the Strategic’ Report have been prepared in accordance with appllcable legal
requwements : '

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Trust and its énvironment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material m‘isstatements-in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report.

We have nothmg to report in respect of the following matters in relation to WhICh the Companles Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been -
received from branches not visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain d|sclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 4

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Trustees' Responsibilities Statement, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is
necessary to. enable the preparatvon of financial statements that are free from materlal misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statemenits, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Trust's ability to continue

asa going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern

basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or have no
realustucalternatlve but to do so. fmanmal statements
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST (CONTINUED)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are-to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
freefrom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes
ouropinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
inaccordance with .ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arisefrom fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
" beexpected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

“lrregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. Our audit must be alert to the risk of manipulation of the financial statements and
seek tounderstand the incentives and opportunities for management to achieve this.

We undertake the foilowing procedures to identify and respond to these risks of non-cdmpliance':

e .Understanding the key legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Trust. We
» communicatedidentified laws and regulations throughout the audit team and remained alert .to any
indications ofnoncompliance throughout the audit. We determined the most significant of these to be the
“regulations setout by the DfE/ESFA. Our audit focuses on financial matters as set out in our regularity
opinion. Other keylaws and regulations included safeguarding, Health & Safety, GDPR and employment law
e Enquiry of trustees and management as to po||0|es and procedures to ensure compliance and any known
instances of non-compliance :
e Review of board minutes and correspondence with regulators
» - Enquiry of trustees and- management as to areas of the financial statements susceptlble to fraud-and how
. these risks are managed
e Challenging management on Key estlmates assumptlons and judgements made in the preparation of the
financial statements. These key areas of uncertainty are disclosed in the accounting policies
k) Identcfylng and testing unusual journal entries, with a particular focus on manualljournal entries.

Through these procedures, we did not become aware of actual or suspected non-compliance.

We planned and performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards but owing to the inherent
limitationsof procedures required in these areas, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected a
materialmisstatement in the accounts. The further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from
the eventsand transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it.
The risk of notdetecting a ‘material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, asfraud may involve concealment, collusion, forgery, misrepresentations, or override of .
internal controls. We arenot responsible for preventing non-compliance and cannot be expected to detect non-
~ compliance with all Iawsand regulations.Our financial statements Audltors Report our financial statements

We our our

A further description of our our responsibilities for the audit of the flnanmal statements financial statements is
located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org. uk/audltorsrespon3|b|Ilttes This description
forms part of our Auditor's Report. our Audltors Report -
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
‘ NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST (CONTINUED) '

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
’ .Companles Act 2006. Our audit work has béen undertaken so that we might state to the Trust's members those
‘matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' Report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent

permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Trust and its members, as
" a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. .

Chrlstopher Beaumont BA(Hons) BFP FCA DChA (Senlor Statutory Audltor)
_-for and on behalf of

Clive Owen LLP

Chartered. Accouritants and Statutory Audltors

140 Coniscliffe Road

" Darlington :

Co Durham

DL3 7RT

- .Date 24 w ;“’JZ
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO NORTHERN
STAR ACADEMIES TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 16 September 2022 and further to the
requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts
Direction 2022 to 2023, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurarice about whether the
expenditure disbursed and income received by Northern Star Academies Trust during the year 1 September
2022 to 31 August 2023 have been applied to-the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Northern Star Academies Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Northern Star Academies Trust and
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted -
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Northern Star Academies Trust and
ESFA, for.our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed. :

Respectlve respons:bllltles of Northern Star Academles Trust‘s accountmg officer and the
reporting accountant

The accountlng officer is responsible, under the requirements of Northern Star Academies Trust's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 22 December 2014 and the Academy Trust
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorlties which
govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have not been appiied to purposes
. intended by Parhament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities WhICh govern them.

" Approach

We conducted our ‘engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
-Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter. . .

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to prowde us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

" A limited assurance engagement is more limited in ‘scope than a reasonable assurance "enga'gement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
“might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes. examlnatlon on a test basis, of ewdence relevant to the regularity and propnety of
the Trust's income and expendlture

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

- Review of governing body and committee minutes;

- Review of termly Internal Assurance reports;

— Completion of self assessment questionnaire by Accounting Officer;

- Review documentation provided to Trustees and Accounting Officer setting out responsibilities;
. — Obtain formal letters of representation detailing the responsibilities of Trustees; -
— Review of payroll, purchases and expenses claims on a sample basis;

- Confirmation that the lines of delegation and limits set have been adhered to;

- Evaluation of internal control procedures and reporting lines;

— Review cash payments for unusual transactions;

- Review of credit card transactions;
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- Review of registers of interests;

— Review related party transactions; -

- Review of borrowing agreements;

- Review of land and building transactions;

'~ Review of potential and actual bad debts;

..— " Review an instance of gifts/hospitality to ensure in I|ne with policy;
- Review whrstleblowrng procedures :

- Review pay policy and factors determlnlng executlve pay;

— Review of staff expenses;

-~ Review other income to ensure is in line with funding agreement
- Review governance structure and number of meetings held,; and
— Review whether there isa rlsk register in place

'Concluswn
In the course of our work nothing has come to our attention whlch suggest in all matenal respects the
“expenditure disbursed and iricome received, duririg the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 has not been

applied to purposes mtended by Parllament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities
which govern them. -

- Clive Owen LLP ‘
Re‘portingAccountantA
140 Coniscliffe Road
Darlington’

Co Durham
DL3 7RT

-Datez.c M&y 2"33
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

~ STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 '

‘ Restricted . .
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset ~ Total - Total
funds funds - funds - funds funds -
' S 2023 2023 2023 2023 2022 .
Note £000 £000. £000 £000 £000
Income from: -
Donations and capital ‘
grants: -3
- Other donations and .
capital grants .. - - 143 - . 816 . 959 4,517
. Other trading activites 1,004 - - 1,004 729
Investments ~ ~ - 6 . 27 - - 27 -
Charitable activities: ‘ -
. Trust educational . e .
‘o_peration_s_ AR : : o194 22,766 - 22,960 20,275
Teaching hub S - o222 - 222 317
Total income - 1,368 22,988 816 25,172 25,838
~ Expenditure on: -
-Charitable activities:
- Trust educational ‘ . ‘ o
operations - : 1,367 . 22,475 720 . 25,813 . 23,633
Teaching hub . - 243 - 243 382
Other charltable ' . ) ‘
.actlvmes o ) . 1,251 - - -
Total expenditure .- 1,367 23,969 720 . 26,056 24,015
Net income/ . - _ E o
(expenditure) _ : L 1 (981) 96 (884) 1,823 .
" Transfers: between e :
funds - 21 (653) 648 5 - -
Net movement in ' .
funds before other
recognised RS - - .
gams/(losses) : . (652) (333) 101 (884) 1,823
k Other recognlsed : ‘ .
gains/(losses):
_ Actuarial gains on
defined benefit - : _
pension schemes 29 . - 2,805 - .2,805 10,450
Other losses » - - (109) - (109) -
Net movement in ' ' -
funds (652) 2,363 101 1,812 12,273

Reconciliation of
funds:
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDIT

(CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

URE ACCOUNT)

. _ v Restricted ,
-Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
. funds funds funds funds funds
. 2023 2023 2023 2023 - . 2022
Note ' £000 £000 _ £000 £000 £000
. Total funds brough ’ : : ‘
forward : - _ ' . 1,281 (4,336) - 37,729 34,674 22,401
Net - movement in ‘ » ‘ S : o o . :
funds - ‘ . (652) - 2,363 - 101 1,812 . 12,273
~ Total funds carried. . -~ - — — — . S S
- forward - . - 629 (1,973) - 37,830 36,486 - 34,674
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‘Total net assets

_NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07553531

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

, - 2023
Note : ‘£000
Fixed assets . ' '
Intangible assets 14 , 18
- . Tangible assets. 15 ' : . 37,408
37,426
Current assets )
Stocks ' 16 . .
Debtors 17 . 875"
Investments . 18 1,015
. Cash at bank and in hand : 1,835
, 3,725 -
Creditors: amounts falling due within 'one » - o o
year ' ~ : 19 : (2,550)
Net current assets 1,175
Total assets less current liabilities - - L '38,601
- Creditors: amounts falling due after more . '
. than oneyear 20 _ E (29) -
Net éssets excluding pension liability e L 38,572 -
~ . Defined benefit pension scheme liability ' 29 . ' (2,086)
36,486

Page 38 .

2022
£000
37,216
37,216
2
674
3514
4,190
(2,210)
1080
39;196
.(41)
© 39,155 n
(4,481)
34,674



NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07553531

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

‘Funds of the Trust
Restrieted- funds:
Fixed asset funds -
Restricted income funds

Restricted'fUnds excluding pension asset

Pension reserve’

Total restrlcted funds

. Unrestrlcted income funds

: Total funds

.21

Note

21

21
21

‘21:
21

2023

£000
37,830
113
37,943
(2,086)

35,857

629

36,486

AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

~

2022
£000
37,729
145
37,874
(4,481)
33,393
1,281
34,674

. The fmanmal statements on pages 36.to. 77 were approved and authonsed for. issue by the Trustees and are

signed on their behalf, by:

,chLN

- Chair of Trustees )
- Date: 15 December 2023
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Cash flows from ope.rating activifies

Net cash (used in)/provided by operatiﬁé activities .

Cash flows fr;)m inveétin_g. activities :

Cash flows fiom financing activities

Change in '_cash a-nd ca'sl; equivalents in the year.
Cash and cash_ equivalents at the Seginning .o'f th;a year ',

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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23

25

24

26, 27

2023 - 2022
£000 £000
(669) 302
a7 197
(12) (11)
(664) 488
3,514 3,026
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1.1

NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST .
. (A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting policies .

A summary .of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied conS|stentIy, ‘
except where noted) judgements and key sources of estimation uncertamty, is set out beIow

Basns of preparatlon of financial statements

The financial statements of the Trust, WhICh is a publlc benefnt entlty under FRS 102, have ‘been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard

- Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:

1.2

Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance -
with the Financial Reportlng Standard applicable .in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS- 102)
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA, the
Charltles Act 2011 and.the Companles Act 2006 : :

Going concern

‘The Trustees assess wh‘e_the'r‘the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any

material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of

. "the Trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period

.of -at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have-
“concluded that the Trust has .adequate resources -to contlnue in operatlonal existence for -the
- foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Trust's ability to continue as a

going concern, thus.they continue to’ adopt the gomg concern ba5|s of accounting in preparing the
financial statements .
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting policies (continued)

13 Inc'ome

All incoming resources are recognised when'the Trust has entitlement to the funds ‘the recenpt is
probable and the amount can be measured reltably

. Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of . FlnanC|aI Activities on a receivable basis: The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there.is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met.
Where entltlement occurs before i mcome is recerved the income is accrued

. General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Flnanmat Actrvrtles in the period for
. which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the perlod is deducted from income and

recognlsed asa ||ab|hty

Capital grants are recognlsed in- full when there is an uncondmonal entrtlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund.

Donations -

Donations are recognised on a recelvable basis (where there are no performance -related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured. :

Other income

-Other income, including the hire of facrhtres is recognised in the period in which it IS recervable and

to the extent the goods have been provided oron completlon of the service.

. Transfer on conversmn

"Where assets and habrhtres are recelved by the academy trust on conversion to an academy, the
" transferred assets are measured at fair value and recognised in-the balance sheet- -at the point when

the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the academy trust. An equal amount of income is
recognlsed as transfer on conversron within Donations and capital grant income to the net assets
received. .

Donated flxed assets (excludlng transfers on conversron or into the Trust) :

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is rmpractlcal to
measure this reliably, in which:case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is
recognised as 'Income from Donations and Capital Grants' and a corresponding amount is included

" in the appropriate fixed asset category and deprecnated over the useful economic life in accordance

with the Trust's accounting poI|C|es
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting policies (continued)

1.4

Expenditure

" Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic

benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will _be required in
settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by

~ activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs,

including support costs involved in undértaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity
and support costs which are not attributable to ‘a single activity are apportioned between those
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the
basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Expenditure on charitable - activities are costs incurred on Athe Trust's educational operations,
including support costs and those costs relating to governance of the Trust appointed to charitable
activities. - ' )

Charitable actlwtles .
These are costs incurred on the Trust‘s educational operations, including support costs and costs

" relating to the governance of the Trust apportloned to charitable act|V|t|es

- 1.5

All resources ‘expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Tangible fixed assets

Assets: costmg £5,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment. :

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the .
government or from the private sector, they are included .in the Balance Sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached -
to the funding requiring the. continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestrlcted
funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

' Depreciation is provided on all tanglble fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to

write off the cost of these assets, less their estimated residual value, over their-expected useful lives
on the following baS|s

Leasehold property - Over 125 years

Fixtures and fittings ' - 3 years straight line -

Computer equipment . - 3 years straight line

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not

~charged until they are brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is: carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that thé carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying’
value of fixed asséts and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.
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NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

‘Accounting policies (continued)

.Agency arrangements

The Trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from the ESFA. Payments received
from the ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the Statement of
Financial Activities as the Trust does niot have control over the charitable application of the funds.
The Trust can. use up to 5% of the allocation towards its own administration costs and this is
recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities. The funds received and pa|d and any balances
held are disclosed in note 33. .

‘The Trust also acts as-agent in distributing School Centred Initial Teacher Tralnmg (SCITT) bursary -
. funds from the Department for -Education. Payments received from the DfE and subsequent
. disbursements. to students are excluded from the Statement of Financial Activities as the Trust does

not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The funds received and paid and any -

- balances held are disclosed in note 33.

Llabilltles

-Liabilities a_re reoognised when there is an oolig-ation at the Balance Sheet date as a result of a pa'st
-event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit- will be required in settlement, and the
~-amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the -

Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for
the goods or services it must provide.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Trust has an obligation at the reportinQ date as a result of a past
event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be
estimated reliably. : .

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those

- amounts, discounted at the’ pre-tax discount rate- that reflects the risks specific to the’ liability. The
.unwinding of the discount i is recognlsed within interest payable and similar charges. . :

Leased Assets

Rentals under operatlng leases are charged ona stralght line baS|s over the Iease term.

1 10 Stocks

Unsold uniforms and other stocks are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.11 Financial instruments

The Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial fiabilities of the Trust and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 17. Prepayments are not financial instruments. Cash
at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Cash at bank is classified as. a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade credltors accruals and other credltors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 19 and 20. Taxation and social 'security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial instrument. . .

112 Taxatlon v

The Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6-of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. -

" Accordingly, the Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains’
received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are
applled exclusively to charitable purposes.

1.13 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Trust are prbvided by the- Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are deflned beneflt schemes.

The TPS is: an unfunded scheme and contnbutlons are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially' level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Goverhment Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between -employers: Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined .contribution scheme for
- accounting purposes and the contributions recognlsed in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is-a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and- liabilities are measured. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of -
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least
triennially and are updated at each Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged to-operating surplus
are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements
and curtailments. They are included as part of .staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit, liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
.interest cost on' the. defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on:the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses. '

. Actuarial gains and Iosses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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Accounting policies (continued)

i.14 Fund accounting -

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of
the charitable objects of the Trust at the discretion of the Trustees. '

Restricted fixed asset funds are’ resources which are to be applied 'to specific .capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

" 1.15Intangible assets .

Intangible'aésets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised and recognised when future economic . -
benefits are probable and the cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible ‘assets are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently measured at cost net of ...
amortisation and any provision for impairment. ' . :

Amortisation is-brovided‘on_intangiblg asséts at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on
a straight-line basis over its expected useful life. At the reporting date, all intangible assets
remained in development and were not in use. Therefore no amortisation has been charged. .

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Computer software o - 2 years .
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Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates

~and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related -actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrymg amounts of

assets and liabilities W|th|n the next financial year are discussed below. .

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptlons used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
“changes in these assumptions, which.are disclosed in note 26, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2022. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full

- .actuarial valuatlon ‘would |mpact on the carrylng amount of the pension liability.

Any differences between the figures derlved from the roll forward approach and a full actuarlal valuation
would impact on.the carrying amount of the pension liability.

The original West Yorkshlre Pensmn Fund scheme valuation showed an asset of £109,000. That asset
valuation is highly dependent on a number of assumptions and does not represent the future value of -
benefit to the Trust. As a result, the Trustees have considered the potential benefits to the Trust. On-the
basis that the future value of employer contributions in respect of future service cost (£249,000) exceeds
the employer future service costs (£246,0000), combined with the fact that the last Local Government
Scheme actuarial review set the contribution rates from 1 April 2023 and that these will not be reviewed
until April 2026, the Trustees have decided to include the pension asset for this scheme as £nil.

Goodwin .

The case related to male spouse or civil partner of a female member is treated in the same way as a
same-sex spouse or civil partner. Survivor benefits will be calculated using service from 1 April 1972, or 6
April 1978 if the marriage or civil partnership took place after the last day of pensionable service. This
change will apply for deaths in respect of female members which occurred from 5 December 2005, which
is the date that same-sex civil partnerships were introduced. This case was brought against the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme. Actuaries have estimated that the impact of Goodwin indexation to be less
than 0.1% of total liabilities. Based on this estimate it would increase liabilities by £15,404 which has been
assessed to be immaterial to the financial statements. - '

Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of an asset, less its residual vaiue, over the
economic. life of that asset. An estimate of the useful life of assets is detailed in the deprecuatlon
~ accounting policy. The value of deprec&atlon charge during the year was £505 000 ’

Critical areas of judgem.ent:

Land and buildings — New Park Primary School, Hookstone Chase Primary School, the land at
Harrogate High School, Eastwood Primary School, Holycroft Primary School, Starbeck Primary Academy
and Greatwood Community Primary School are held under a 125 year lease with North Yorkshire County
Council and Bradford Metropolitan District Council. The land and buildings at Skipton Girls’ High School
are held under a 125 year lease with the Skipton Girls' High School Foundation Trustees Limited. These
assets are included on the balance sheet of the academy due to. the significant risks and rewards of
ownership belonging to the academy, the lease termi being the major part of the economic life of the
assets and the assets being: of such a specialised nature that only the academy could use them without
major modification.

Page 47



NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgemer\t (continued)

The buildings at Harrogate ngh School were built under a PFI contract Based on the terms and
conditions of the contract between the school and third parties the building has been excluded from the

financial statements. -

Valuation of property — On conversion the trust valued the building in line with other buildings within the
trust.- The trust used the Starbeck valuation from 2020 and increased in line W|th property prices to obtain

a valuation for the current year.

Income from :donations'an'd capital grants

Restricted

Unrestricted ~ Restricted  fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds. funds - -
2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
. £000 . £000 £000 £000 . £000
Donations : ' -
Transfer from local’ authonty on
conversion , : - - - - 3,750
- - - - 3,750
Donations . | 143 : 111 254 224
Capital Grants - - - 705 705 . '543
. 143 - 816 959 4517
Total 2022 - 798 (577) 4,296 4,517
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Funding for the academy’s educational operations.

Academy’s educational operations

DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG)
' Other DfE/ESFA grants ‘
Start Up. Grants .
Pupil Premium
PE and Sport-Premium
UIFSM
" Rates - v
Teachers’ pay grant
Teachers’ pension.grant
Other DfE Group grants
Supplemeritary grant

Other Government grants
SEN .

Early Years Funding
Local Authority grants -

. Other Government grants

Other inéom_e from the‘Tru‘stés academy’s

educational operations :

COVID-19 additional funding (DfEIESFA)v
Other DfE/ESFA.COVID-19 funding ‘

Teaching Hub

Total 2023

Total 2022

" Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
. 2023 2023 " 2023 2022
£000 £000 ~ £000 ~ £000

- 18,273 18,273 16,612

- - - 25
- 1,102 S1,102 951

: 130 130 118
- 285 285 230
- 74 74 87
- 7 7 26
- 67 67 . 74
- 194 - . 194 444
- 769 769 -
- 20,901 20,901 18,567
- 518  518. 361
- 782 782 642
- - 89 89 81
- 17 17 - 88
- 1,406 1,406 1,172
194 316 510 1322

. 143 143 S 214
- 143 . 143 214
194 22,766 22,960 20,275
- 222 222 317
194 22,988 23,182 20,592
133
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Income from other trading activities

Income from facilities and services
Non student catering income
Rental and’ Iemngs income

Receipts’ from Supply Teacher Insurance
claims

RPA claims .
Student catering income
. Other income o

- Total 2022

Investment income

. ,Béhk lnteArest

Total

Unréstricted Restricted Total
funds funds funds . funds
2023 2023 2023 2022

- £000 £000 . £000 £000

122 - 122 83

8 - '8 30

7 - 7 8.

17 - 17 .29

8 o o- . 8. 2

511 B 511 . 256

331 ' - 331 321
1,004 S 1,004 - - 729

728. 1 729

Unrestricted Total Total

. funds- funds funds

2023 £ 2023 2022

~ £000 © £000- " £000

27 27 ]
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Expenditure

'

Other '

“In 2023, of the total expenditure, £1,367,000 (2022: £1,264,000)

£24,689,000 (2022: £22,751,000) was to restricted funds.

There were no individual transactions exceeding £5,000 for:

- Gifts made by the trust .
- Fixed assét losses

- Compensation payments
- Stock losses

- Cash losses .

- Unrecoverable debts

Analysis of expenditure by activities

- ‘Academy's educational operations
Teaching hub

Total 2022

Staff Costs Premises _ Total Total
2023 2023 . 2023 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 ~ £000 . £000
Academy’s. eduéaﬁonal
operations: ‘ v
Direct costs o . 16,776 - 1,378 18,154 17,064 .
_ Allocated support costs 2,993 2,141 2,525 7,659 16,569
ST : o o ‘
Direct costs o 86 - 107 193 327
" Allocated support costs- 46 - "'4 50 55
S 19,901 2441 4,014 26,056 24,015
Total 2022 18,806 1,676 3,533 24,015

was to unrestricted funds and

Activities e o
undertaken Support Total Total'
- directly, © costs - -funds funds
- 2023 2023 - 2023 2022
£000 £000 © £000 £000
18,154, 7659 . . 25813 23633 .
- 193 50 243 382
18,347 7,709 26,056 24,015
17,391 6624 24,015

Page 51



NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of direct costs

Academy's, "
educational Teaching Total Total
operations: hub. - funds - funds
- 2023 2023 2023 2022
£000 - £000 £000 £000
Staff costs o - 16776 .86 16,862 16,038
- Educational supplies o 586 " 107 693 568
Examination fees S o 186 - 186 155
Staff development - ' L 39 - 39 . 43
. Technology costs .~~~ 22 - 22 111
Educational consultancy' S 241 - 241 - 195
" Transport o o 12 .- 12 .15
‘Othercosts ~ . .~ . 292 - 292 266
18154 . 193 18,347 - 17,391

Total 2022 : 17,064 327 17,391
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Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of supqut costs’

funds - .

19, .

Page 53

Academy’s .
educational o Total Total
operations SCITT funds
2023 : 2023 . 2023 . 2022
£000 - £000 - £000 £000
Pensionfinance costs : ) o - 161 - 161 214 -
Staffcosts . . . 2,993 46 37039 2,768
Depreciation, A ' . 505 - 505 465
Staff development - ‘ 15 - 15 o031
Technology costs - 305 - - 305 269
Staff éxpenses o S 24 . - 24
~ Supply insurance R - - 57 - 57 41
Méintenande of premises = Lo » 333 - 333 489.
Cleaning o . 114 - 114 - 105
© Other premises costs’ E S 189, - 189 161
Energy - : : 1,017 - 1,017 463 -
Rentand rates - S 73 - 73 89
.Ihsurance : ‘ T 9 - 91 - 73
. -Operating lease rent'a_ls‘ - ' o 27 - 27 22
Catering ST 1,076 - 1,076 ' 874
Legal costs - conversion L . - - - 28
Legal costs = other . I 1 - 1 10
Other costs o e32 4 636 462
" Governance costs : ' T - 46 41
7,659 50 7,709 6,624
Total 2022 '- | - 6,569 55 6,624.
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Net income/(expenditure)

Net indome/(expenditure) for the year includes:

2023 . 2022

£000 £000
Opefat‘ing lease rentals o A - _ 27 22
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets e : : 505 465
Fees paid to auditors for: ‘ ' ‘
- - audit S : . 25 A
- other services _ - N ' ., 6 5
. . Staff
" a. Staff costs
Staff costs during the 'year'wére as follows:
2023 - - 2022
_ | o | £000 £000
Wages and salaries . - - ' ' ' S 14,558 12,911
. Social security costs . - o , 1,428 1,256
Pension costs o : 4 - 3,309 4,120
. . 19,295 18,287
" Agency staff costs " S ‘ 4 > . 591 498 .
. Staff restructuring costs : S . o 5. 21
19,901 . 18,806

Included in pension costs |s a charge of £140 000 (2022 £1,351 000) relatlng to the penS|on defICIt
actuarlal adjustment

Staff restructunng costs comprlse

2003 . 2022 .

_ ‘ ‘ © £000 - “£000 -
Severance payments ) : : ' 5. 21
15 - 21

Page 54



10.

NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Staff (continued)

b. Severance payments

The Trust paid 24severance payments in the year (2022 -’2), disclosed in the following bands':

2023 2022 .
. , _ "~ No. . No.
£0 - £25,000 R , . . 2. 2

C. Specral staff severance payments

' Included in’ staff restructurlng costs are non- statutory/non contractual severance payments totalllng £Nil
(2022; £N|I) Ind|V|duaIIy, the payments were: £Nil.

' d. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Trust daring the year was as foIIows ®

: 2023 L 2022

No. - No.

Teachers .~ . . . o : e 174 . -193
Administration and support ' . o ‘ 347 336
Management = ° . B o ' e 260 27
" 547 556

e 'Higher p'aid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excludlng employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was: .

2023 2022

g . . _ A » _No. .- " No.
' In the band £60,001 - £70,000 ' S : - 8 R
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 . = 7 5

In the band £80,001 - £60,000° ' L 8 4

Inthe band £110,001 - £120,000 -~ - . = - ST 1
I the band £120,001 - £130,0000 . o .

f. Key management personnel

The-key management personnel-of the Trust comprise the Trustees and the Executive Leadership Team
as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and
employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to
the Trust was £582 000 (2022: £516,000). :
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Central services
The Trust has provided the following central services to its academies durirg the 'year:
- HRand legal advisory
Financial control and internal audit

‘Capital project management
= School improvement support

The Trust charges for these services on the follewing basis:
- 5% of income. .
. The'actual amounts charged during the year were as f’oIon'vs,:'

2023 2022

‘ _ o ) . £000 £000 - -
Skipton Girls' High School .~ =~~~ . . 245 - 236
Harrogate High School - S : - - 216 196

" New Park Primary Academy - L ) o : ‘ Y L 48
Hookstone Chase Primary School - _ . - 67 } 69
Holycroft Primary School - 7 o ' _ : . e . 97
Eastwo'od Commuhity School, o , S R 114
Starbeck Primary Academy - ' o o . 52 50

- Greatwood Primary School ' - : A 55 - 53
Willow Tree Primary School o S 13 . 45

Total S ’ o 1,005 908

Trustees' remuneratibn and exp’ens‘es

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received’ other beneflts from an employment
with the Trust. The prmmpal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services -
they provide undertaklng ‘the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.
The value of Trustees rremuneration and other beneflts was as follows: , :

2023 - 2022

o - | ‘ , Lo ~ £000 £000.
J.Plews, (CEO) : "~ Remuneration . o 120-125 115-120
: ' : Pension contributions paid - 25-30 25 - 30

During the year ended 31 August 2023, expenses totallmg £1,708 were reimbursed or paid dlrectly to
Trustees. (2022 £1 264) .
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Trustees' and Officers' insurance .

‘The Trust has dpted into the Departmént for Education'sb Risk Protection Arrangément (RPA), an

alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise., This scheme protects
Trustees .and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors ‘or omissions occurring whilst on

Trust business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and -
- officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.

Intangible assets

. .Computer .

software
* £000
Cost A e S o
At 31 August 2023 L R C | ‘ T
Net book Val_’ue
At 31 August 2023 - L - ; 18
At31August 2022 : L : : . S
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Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuatibn
At 1 September 2022
Additions

At 31 August 2023

Depreciation

‘At 1 September 2022
Charge for the year -

At 31 August 2023

Net book value

At 31 August 2023

At 31 August 2022

Stocks

Stationery i

Debtors

Trade debtors '
Other debtors

NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Leasehold Assets under Fixtures and

Prepayments and accrued income '

VAT recoverable

4 Computer o
_property  construction fittings equipment Total
- £000 £000 £000 ~ £000 £000
| 38,806 : 196 602 39,604
544 21 - 132 697
39,350 21 196 734 40,301
© 1,939 - " 166 283 2,388
312 - .13 © 180 505
. 2,251 - 179 463 2,893 .
37,099 21 17 271 37,408
36,867 . 30 319 37,216
2023 2022
© £000 “£000
- 2
12023 2022.
£000 £000
82 62
17 39
557 395
219 178
875 674
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Current asset investments

2022

2023
_ £000 £000
Investment account balances - o o ' I 1,015 . . -
Creditors: Amounts falling due within onelyeal"
2023 . 2022
. £000 £000
. Otherloans - . - . R 12 .12
Trade creditors- o - I . 834 245
~ Other taxation and social security . L . 323 304
Other creditors . o ‘ : ‘ - . 549 394
Accruals and deferred-income T o , - 832 1,255
2550 - 2210
2023 2022
S £000 £000 -
- Deferred income at 1 September 2022 . ' : o 329 230
Resources.deferred during the year = : ‘ o3 329
Amounts released frqrh, previous periods ‘ S ' . o T (329) (230) -
311 329

Deferred income includes Tuition' funding, Post 16 bdréary, Universal Infant Free School Meals, trip

income and rates relief funding which relates to the following academic year.

Creditors: Amounts falling due after mb"re than one year

2023

£000 -

Otherloans . o : I A : S 29

2022
£000
41

Other - creditors include loans totalling £41,000. (2022: £54,000) from. Salix Finance Ltd. These: are-

- interest free loans repayable through. GAG over.a 8 year period, paid biQénnually.
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Statement of funds

Balance at

Balance at 1 . :
" September o Transfers . Gains/ 31 August
2022 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2023
, £000. £000 . £000 £000° £000 £000
Unrestricted ’ '
funds
General Funds = 1,281 1,368 (1,367) (653) - 629
RestrictedA '
general .funds,_ .
General Annual . ) . ] A
Grant (GAG) ‘ - 18,273 (18,900) 627 - -

- Pupil Premium ' - 1,102 (1,102) _ - - -
Other ' ' : R
DfE/ESFA S
‘grants . = 1,526 (1,526) . - - -

" SEN o - 519 (519) - . - .

. Other ' S ‘
government . _
grants B - 888 . (888) " - - -
‘Hockey sinking ) ’

. fpnd ' o 113 - - - - 113
Other income - 316 (316) - - -
DFE Covid-19 :

~ Funding. - - 32 142 (174). - - -
SCITT o s 222 - (243) - 21 - -
reserve (4,481) - (301) - 2,696 (2,086)

(4,336) 22,988 (23,969) 648 2,696 (1,973)

Page 60



21.

NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Statement of funds (continued)‘ :

Restricted
fixed asset
funds

Asséts on
conversion
Devolved
formula capital
Capital assets
post convesion

. Capital

improvement

- fund -

Capital
expenditure, -
from GAG
Capital
expenditure
from
unresticted
funds' "~

: Capital

expenditure
from. dona_tions

scaA
COVID-19 -

.Catch up

premium

Assets q;bﬁated
from DfE/ESFA

Total

Restricted
funds

Total funds

30,613

- (259)

. i - 30,354
60 273 (99) (90) - 144

1,794 . - (15) - : 1,779
3,731 - @) : - 3,700
91 - © (14) - - 77

9 - (7) - - 2

191 11 (100) . - 202
1,196 432 (154) 95 - 1,569
5 : 4y : - 1

39 - (37) - . 2
37,729 816 (720) 5 - 37,830
33393 23,804  (24,689) 653 2,696 35,857
34674 < 25172 (26,056). ' 2,696 36,486
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Statement of funds (continued)
The speciﬂc purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

The General Annual Grant (GAG) must be used for the normal running of the acadevmy' including salaries
and related costs, overheads, repairs and maintenance, and insurance.

Pupil Premium is additional funding to be spent as the school sees fit to support deprived students.

Universal Infant Free School Meals is funding to provide free school lunch to all pupils in receptlon year 1
and year 2. .

‘Other DfE/ESFA Grants also includes the PE and sport premium grant rates relief, teachers’ pay grant '
and teachers pension grant

" SEN Funding is funding for puplls with Special Educational Needs.

Other government grants include Early Years' fundlng for three and four year oId chlldren fundmg for
pupils with Special Educatron Needs and other income from the local authority. -

Exceptional Government funding is mcome received due to the Coronawrus outbreak.

~ Other grant funding relates marnly relates to STEM fundlng to additional support in Science, Technology,
Engineering and Mathematics.

SCITT (Teaching hub) funding is to fund the training of student teachers.

The pension reserves is the Irabrllty due to the deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme. Further
detalls are shown in note 29.

The restricted fixed asset funds represent monies received to purchase fixed assets. Deprecratlon is
charged against each fund over the useful economic I|fe of the associated assets. .

Unrestncted funds include the income from uniform sales .school trips and catering with the relevant
costs allocated accordingly.

A transfer of £5,000 has been made to capital expenditure from GAG to reflect those |tems included .
within fixed assets which have been purchased using GAG monies.

A transfer of £21,000 (2022: £66,000) has been made to the SCITT from GAG to cover the excess of -
expenditure over SCITT income. .

A transfer of £653,000 (2022: £n|I) has been made between GAG and Unrestricted funds to cover the '

‘increased cost of assomate staff pay rises and unbudgeted supply costs

.Under the fundlng agreement wnth the Secretary"of State the Trust was not subject to a limit on 1 the
» amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2023.
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Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respéct of the preceding year is as follows:
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Balance at . L _ Balance at
1 September ' . : . Transfers Gains/ ~ 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure - infout = (Losses) 2022
‘ . £000 . ~£000 - £000 - £000 £000 £000
Unrestricted .
“funds - .
- General Funds 886 1859 . (1.264) , - - 1,281
Restricted '
general funds
General Annual. : ‘ _ o
Grant (GAG) - 16612 (16,480) © ~  (132) - -
Conversion ‘ o _ L '
grants S - 25 . (25) - N -
" Pupil Premium - 951 (951) - - - -
- Other SR a ' '
- DfE/ESFA , : o
grants - 979 © . (979). - - -
SEN - . I 1 (361). - - .
" Other ' ‘ ’
‘government o : ‘ S .
grants - 811 (811) - - -
Hockey sinking * - o A ' .
.fund . .12 1 - ’ - - 113
© Otherincome Cos 189 - ©-(189) - - -
'DFE Covid-19 I : T ' _
" . Funding : T4 C 214 (256) ~ - - 32 .
- SCITT . - 317 © . (383) - ' 66 - -
. Pension I 4 S S . :
‘teserve - (12,789) . (577)  ~ (1,565) - 10,450 (4,481)
(12,603) . 19,883 (22,000) -~ (66) 10,450 (4,336)
» Restricteq
fixed asset
funds
Assets on - _
conversion 27,235 3,620 - (242) - - 30,613
~ Devolved S . . o ' '
formula capital 30 . 89 - (59) ‘ - - 60
" Capital assets. . e A
post convesion 1,809 ] - : (15) - - 1,794



NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

~ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023
Statement of funds (continued.) |

Balance at - . ‘ Balance at

1 September ' "~ Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2021 “Income Expenditure ~-infout (Losses) . 2022
£000 £000 £000 ) £000 £000 £000
Capital |
improvement . ' . ' o . -
fund B © 3,763 14 - (32)- (14) , - "3,731
Capital ' ' ' S
expenditure . : 7 . - v .
from GAG 18 - : 7)) . 80 . - ' 91
" Capital o
expenditure
from
unresticted : S : o ' : < R
“funds - - - 16 .- ' (7) - S - 9
Capital : - :
expenditure , : s g : S _ 4 » :
from donations 191 - 133 - (133) - S _ <. 191
SCA 971 . 440 - (215) _ - - . 1,196
COVID-19 ' ' - ‘
Catch up : , - ‘
premium . ' 9 - 4) . - - 5
Assets donated S o - ' S . I
from DfE/ESFA 76 - (37) - o= 39 -
34118 4296 51) 66 - 37,729
. Total . ) _
.Restricted ] ) o . . ; : :
funds . ' 21,515 . 24,179 . (22,751) - 10,450 33,393
Total funds 22401 25838 (24015) - 10,450 34,674

Page 64



21.

NORTHERN STAR ACADEMIES TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Statement of funds (continued)

. Total funds analysis by academy _‘

Fund balances at 31 August. 2023 were allocated aé follows:

Skipton Girls' High School
Harrogate High School

New Park Primary Academy -
Hookstone Chase Primai'y‘$choo'l .

~ Holycroft leary School
. Eastwood Commumty School

Starbeck Primary Academy

Greatwood Community anary School

Willow Tree. Community Prlmary School
Central Services.

" - Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve
.Restricted fixed asset fund -

Pension'reserve

'I.'ot"al
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2023

2022
£000 . - £000
1,065 889
(307) - (246)

112 143
12 18
113 167
320 434
(294) (100)
(148) (102)
514 596

- (645), (373) -
742 1,426

37,830 37,729

(2,086) (4,481)

36,486 . 34,674
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Statement of funds (continued)

The following al_'é carrying a net deficit on their portion of the funds as follows:

Deficit

£000
' Harroga'te High School . - - o (307)
Central Services : o ' (645)
Starbeck Primary Academy ‘ : - (294)

Greatwood Community Primary School , ‘ . -(148)

The Trustis t'aking the following action to return the academies to surplus:

Harrogate High School - The Trust continues to support strategic investment in the school in order to

~ drive improvements in the quallty of education. The school has been successful in attracting and -
-recruiting pupils in recent years and is on track to reach capacity in the current plan period. This is-mark

of the school's growing reputatlon As the school becomes full the school will return to break-even and -

begin to settle reserves.’

- Central Services - The Trust has invested upfront to build infrastructure to support its gfowth ambitions.

With the integration of seven additional schools into the Trust in the coming year, the cost of central
services will begin to fall as a proportion of central mcome ‘improving effucnency The Trust has ambitions
to growth further to accelerate this trend. '

“Starbeck Primary Academy - In common with many other sch_oo'ls, ‘Starbeck Academy has exp'erienéedv

rapid growth in pupils with additional needs. The. Trust has supported the Academy as it develops
alternative staffing arrangements to meet such need. The school is- extremely popular within its
communlty and pupil reécruitment is strong, enabling leaders to forecast a return to break-even.

" Greatwood Community Primary School - The school is supporting its hlghest ever number of children W|th

special educational needs, which'has placed severe strain on the school budget. Leaders and governors
are working together to revise the school’s special needs strategy, with measures to develop new models

"~ of worklng and a review of curnculum delivery to refocus spendlng
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21. Statement of funds (continued)
" Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each a'cademy during.the year Waé as follows: .

Teaching -
and o ’ -
éducational "Other ' Other costs -
-support staff support staff - Educational .. excluding Total -Total
costs - costs supplies . depreciation 2023 2022
£000 . -£000 £000 .. . £000 - £000 ~  £000
Skipton Girls' o S — L ' S
High School | 3,360 ' 615 : 141 1,144 - 5,260 - 5,349
Harrogate High o o o . ,
School ' 3,456 457 121 1927 - 4,961 4,251
New Park . ‘ ‘ ’
Primary A : » - : T . : .
Academy - - 802 115 - 29 7185 1,131 . 1,047
Hookstone ' h '
Chase Primary R } . y S o
School S . 1,008 148 17 : 280 . 1,543 1,462
Holycroft Pimary ) . . . . ) :
~ School - 1,662 . 186 39 293 2,180 2,094
‘Eastwood ' : ' ' : '
Community o : .
School ' 1,975 . 269 - - 35 _ . 3585 2,634 2,393
~ Starbeck : ' ' o ‘ ) o
~ Primary. ' o L o o L S0
- Academy o 1,048 1056 - : 18 282 1,453 o 1.239
. Greatwood . ‘ ‘ o )
Primary School A ‘905 - - 129 - : 31 ‘ 250 1,315 1,237
~Willow Tree ' S Co :
- Comimunity R : - .
Primary School . = 1,819 265 31 632 2747 . 1477
Central Services - 73 . 750 106 - 735 . 2,327 3,301
Trust - 16861 3,039 568 5083 25551 23,550
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Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

Tangible fixed assets

_' Intangible fixed assets

Current assets

_ Creditors due within one year
" Creditors due in more than one year
Provisions for liabilities and charges -

Tota_l

Analysis of net assets befween'funds - pfior year‘

Tangible fixed assets

" Current assets

Creditors due within one year

Creditors due in more than one year . -
. Provisions for liabilities and charges

Tota_l

Restricted .
Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023
£000 £000 £000 "£000
. - 37,408 37,408
. - 18 18
629 2,571 . 525 - 3725
- - (2,458) . (92) (2,550) -
- - (29) (29)
- (2,086) - (2,086) -
1629 (1,973) . 37,830 36,486
. ) : Restricted
“Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds - funds
2022 2022 2022 - 2022
£000 £000° £000 - £000
- - ..37,216 37,216 -
1,281 2227 682 - 4,190
(2,082) " (128). (2,210)
- - (41) o (41)
- (4,481) - - (4.481)
1,281 . (4,336) .. 37,729 34,674
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Reconciliation of net (expenditure)/income to net cash flow from opérating activities
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© 2023 2022
£000 £000
Net (expendlture)/mcome for the year (as per Statement of Fmanmal :
Act|V|t|es) - S . : (884) . - 1,823
Adjustments for: ) ' .
Depreciation : ’ . - 505 - 465
Capital grants from DfE and other capltal income - 4 o (705) . (‘676)
Investmentincome . " - o s {27 - ,
Defined beneflt pension scheme obhgatlon inherited _' _— . - 577
~ Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable o ~ 140 1,351
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost o : e 161 - 214
. (Increase)/decrease in stock - ' S S 2 s
(lncrease)/decr_ease in debtors I : . : (201) - (131) -
" Increase/(decrease) in creditors - _ - . © 340 . ‘ 299
Assets inherited on conversion . o 3 S - (3,620)
'Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activites . =~ - . (669) - 302 -
Cash flowsfrom financing activities
©2023 2022 . .
‘ . : _ £000 £000. .
Salix and CIF loan repayments ~ ~ = _ S (12) (1)
Net cash used.in financing activities o L (12) (1)
_C’ééh, fl;}ws from ihvesting a_i:tivitieg
2023 2022
, A . £000. - £000
Investment incomie S : ‘ S 27 -
‘Purchase of fixedassets . =~ .. ' o - (715) (479)
-Capital- grants from DfE Group : ’ S 705 676
~ Netcash provided by investing activities ' : 17 197



26.

27.

28.

29,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022

- S : £000 £000
' Cash in hand and at bank ‘ : ' - : " 1,835 3514
~ Notice deposits (greater than 3 months) L o , 1,015 . -
Total sash and cash equivalents S . . V 2,850 3,614
“Analysis of chahges in net debt
' _ lnvestmenf e
. At1 S inlong term
September . - deposit At'31 August
: © 2022. Cash flows accounts . 2023,
‘ } , ~ £000 £000 £000. - - £000
Cash at bank and in hand - : : 3514  -(664) (1,015 - 1835
Debt due within 1 year o : (12) - - - (12)
Debt due after 1 year - L (41) 12 - (29)
3461 . - (652) - (1,015) . 1,794
 Capital commitments
12023 2022
. : . £000 £000
Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements . '
‘Purchase, construction or development of leasehold property - SR 73 ~ 118

Pensnon commltments

The Trusts employees belong to two pnncnpal pensnon schemes: the Teachers Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and-related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by North Yorkshire County Council Pension Fund and

City of Bradford Metropolit’an District Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2022.

Contrlbutlons amounting to £372,000 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022 £326,000)

and are included within credltors
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Pension commitments (continued)

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers’ Pen,s'i'on Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment. ’

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to'which both the member and employer m_ékes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

- The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the

TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions
2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial schere valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at
31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019.
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are: )

- employer contribution rates set at 23 68% of pensionable pay (mcludlng ao. 08% admlnlstratlon
levy) -

- total scheme habllmes (pensrons currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions -
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

- the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
.SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2:4% in excess of prices.
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2. 2% The
assumed nommal rate of réturn including éarnings growth is 4.45%. -

The nextvaluatlon result is due to be |mplemented from 1 Apnl 2024,
The employers pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £2,053,000 (2022 £1,851,000).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentatlon is on the Teachers' Pensions websute

~ (https:/iwww. teacherspens_lolns co. uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers pensmns-valuatron report.aspx).

Under the deflnltlehs set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded ‘multi-employer pehsron scheme. The
Trust has accounted: for its contributions to the scheme as:if it were a defined contribution scheme The
Trust has set out above thé information avallable on the scheme. :
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- NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
-FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Pension commltments (continued)
Local Government Pension Scheme
The LGPS, is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-

administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £1,408,000
(2022 - £1,162,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £1,111,000 (2022 - £918,000) and

_employees' contributions totalled £297,000 (2022 - £244 ,000). The agreed contribution rates for future .

years are 17.7% -21 3% for employers and 5. 5% - 12.5% for employees.

As described in note the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the Trust, who were the employees -

transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who were ellglble
to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in ‘respect of employees who transferred on
conversion represents their cumulatrve service at both the predecessor school and the Trust at the

. balance sheet date

Parliament has- agreed' at the request of the'Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the -

event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the

' Department for Educatlon The guarantee came into force on 18 JuIy 2013

Principal actuarial assumptlons

'2023 12022 -
- : , . " % %
Rate of increase in salaries . 4 - .385 3.95
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/i‘nflation ) © 260" ‘ 2.70 -
Discount rate for scheme liabilities B . . , '5.10 4.10
Inflation"assumption (CP1) " o o _ 2.60 _ 270
Commutatron of pensmns to lump sums o ' : ’75.00A 75.00

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future |mprovements in mortalrty rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2023 . 2022

. Years : Years .
Retiring today S , S
Males - o 220 21.8
Females , o . , 245 238

.-Retiring in 20 years . ' - o
Males o : | 229 235
. Females = o A ST B - 255 257

Principal actuarial assumptions
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Pension commitments (continued)

West_ Yorkshire Pension Fund

A ‘ %
Rate of increase in salaries ‘ o ' 3.85
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation ' L 260
Discount rate for scheme liabilities . " - .5.00
Inflation assur'npﬁon (C_PI) ' . : - 2.60

Commutation of pensionS to lump sums ' ' ‘ : . 75.00

2023

2022
%
3.95
2,70
4,00
2.70

75.00

The current mortality assumptlons include sufficient allowance for future |mprovements in mortality rates '

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

- 2023

" Years®
'Retlrlng today : . . ..
Males ~ - - R 210
Females - . ' I : ' 24 1
Reiiring in 20 year‘sA . ’ ‘ - | o -
Males : ' ' | ‘ 2.2
Females . ~ : - 254

2022

Years .
218
24.6

225
25.7
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Pension commitments (continued)

'Sensitivity analysis

North Yorkshire and West Yorkshire Pension Funds

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
Mortality as}sdmptidr_\ - 1 year decrease
CPI rate +0.1%

CPlrate -0.1% --

Share of scheme assets

The Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Eq'uities,
Government Bond

'Corporate bonds

Property
Cash

Multi Asset Credit
Others

Total market value of assets

The actual return-on scheme assets was £565,000 (2022 ;£(1 ,144,000)).

2023

£000
(303)
303 -
385

(385) .

" At 31 August

2022
£000
(401)
405
(459)
'459
354
(338)

At 31 August

The amounts re¢ognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows: v

" Interest income

Interest cost |

‘Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities
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12023 2022
£000 © £000
8,382 - 7,077
1,282 1,286
821 768
741 849
181" 174
478 . 407
1,542 1,174
13427 11,735
2023 12022
£000 £000
© 500 - 202.
(661) (416)
(161)

(214)
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Pension commitments (continued)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2023 2022

. . _ £000 - £000
‘At 1 September - ' S o 16,216 23,888
Conversion of academy trusts o o ' - 1,369
Past service cost ' - ' . - 50

~ Current service cost ' © 1,251 -
Interest cost B - e S 661 416 -

Employee contributions o ' ' o c 297 . - 246
Actuarial gains - A g S (2,740) - (11,733)
Benefits paid. . - : ' - ' : (281)  (283)
Asset ceiling restriction . B ‘ S 109 -
At 31 August R S . 15513 13,953
Changes in the fair value of the Trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:

2023 2022
) _ ' £000 - £000

At 1 September o : . I 11,735 11,099
Conversion of academy trusts o T ‘ - o792
Interest income B ’ ' .. 500 202
Actuarial gains/(losses) ) L o -85 (1,283)
Employer contributions . - 1,111 962
Employee contributions : . : C o 297 246
Benefits paid- - - B - N ' (281) . (283)
At 31 August ‘ _ ‘ - 13427 11,735 .

Thé.-originaI»West Yorkshire Penéion Fund. scheme vaiuatio_h showed an assef of £109,000. That éssét
valuation is highly dependent on a number of assumptions and does not represent the future value of

- benefit to the Trust. As a result, the Trustees have considered the potential benefits to the Trust. On the

basis that the future value of employer contributions in respect of future service cost (£249,000) exceeds
the employer future service costs (£246,0000), combined with the fact that the last' Local Government
Scheme actuarial review set the contribution rates from 1 Aprit 2023 and that these will not bé reviewed
until April 2026, the Trustees have decided to include the pension asset for this scheme as £nil. '
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Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2023 the Trust had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operatrng leases as follows:

2023 2022
R B £000 . £000
. Amounts payable:. ) 4 .
Within 1 year . . ' 27 31
Between 1 and 5 years - , ' B 43 . 70.
70 . 101

Other financial commi‘tments ‘

‘ Under the PFI agreement, the Trust has a financial liability to make payments to the PFI'contractor for the

life of the contract, which began in August 2017 and -will run for 25 years. The cost is based on the
11.22% of the total PFI contract costand in the penod was £102,000 (2022 £99 000)

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local

public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
Trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made

on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the Trust's financial

regulatlons and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactlons

Income Related:Party Transactlon :

During the period a donation of £125 000‘(2022 £nil) was received from The Sklbton Girls High School
Foundation Trustee Limited, a charity in which M P Kelly is a Director. No other income was recerved
from related parties during the year (2022 £34 000)

Expendrture Related Party Transactron .

- Dunng the period buildings under a 125 year lease agreement for ‘a peppercorn rent were provrded by
. The Skipton Girls High School Foundation Trustee lelted a chanty in which M P Kelly is a Director.-

Purchases of £4,000 (2022: £n|l) were made from The Nldderdale Plus Partnership of which H Flynn is a
drrector ’
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Agency arrangements

The Trust distributes School Centred Initial Teacher Training (SCITT) bursary funding to student teachers
as an agent for the Department for Education. In the accounting year ending 31 August 2023 the Trust
received £40,000 (2021: £114,000) and disbursed £50,000 (2022: £104,000) from the fund. The balance
carried forward is £nil (2022: £10,000).

Slmularly the Trust distributes 16-19 bursary funding to students as an agent for the Education and Skslls
Funding Agency. In the accounting year ending 31 August 2023 the trust received £26,000 (2022:
£22,000) and disbursed £16,000 (2022: £10,000) from the fund. An amount of £38, OOO (2022 £22,000) is
included in other creditors relating to undistributed funds.
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